
 

 

 
 

 
  

 
 

  
  

    
    

     
  

 
 

              
 

   
 

 
 

   
 

      
 

   
 

      
   

 
  

 
    

 
 

   
 

AGENDA 
HISTORIC PRESERVATION BOARD 

Lakeland Electric Building, Conference Rooms 1A & 1B 
July 27, 2023 8:30 A.M. 

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons with 
disabilities needing special accommodation to participate in this proceeding, or those requiring language 
assistance (free of charge) should contact the City of Lakeland ADA Specialist, Greg James, no later 
than 48 hours prior to the proceeding, at (863) 834-6040, Email: Greg.james@lakelandgov.net. If hearing 
impaired, please contact the TDD numbers: Local - (863) 834-8333 or 1-800-955-8771 (TDD-
Telecommunications Device for the Deaf) or the Florida Relay Service Number 1-800-955-8770 (VOICE), 
for assistance. 

Anyone deciding to appeal a decision by the Board on any matter considered at this or any subsequent 
meeting will need a record of the proceedings, and for purposes of that appeal, may need to ensure that 
a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon 
which the appeal is to be based. 

I. Call to order, determination of a quorum, and roll call. 

II. Review and approval of the June 22, 2023 Historic Preservation Board meeting minutes. 

III. Old Business: 

A. Board to take action on the recommendations of Lakeland Historic District Resurvey 
Project, Phase 1, for the East and South Lake Morton Historic Districts. 

IV. New Business: 

A. Board Member Update: Recognition of Landis Fleming for his service to the Board and 
Design Review Committee. 

V. Adjourn for Design Review Committee. 

\\col-data\cityhall-1\CDDO\HPB.DRC\HPB-DRC 2023\07.27.23\7.27.23 HPB Agenda.docx 

mailto:Greg.james@lakelandgov.net
http:2023\07.27.23\7.27.23
mailto:Greg.james@lakelandgov.net


 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
        

 
 

    
          

    

   
 

    
 

            
          

 
 

      
 

     
    

  
 

   
 

   
   

  
 

    
 

 
    

    
 
 

   
       

MINUTES 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION BOARD 
Lakeland Electric Building Conference Rooms 1A/B 
Thursday, June 22, 2023 
8:30 a.m. 

(Please note: These meeting minutes comply with FS 286.011 and are not intended to be a verbatim 
transcript.) 

The City of Lakeland Historic Preservation Board met in Regular Session; Bruce Anderson, Lynn Dennis, 
Landis Fleming, Cesar Perez, Michael Porter, Natalie Oldenkamp, Chris Olson, MeLynda Rinker and 
Britney Wilson were present. Community & Economic Development Department staff Emily Foster, 
Senior Planner, Historic Preservation and Christelle Burrola, Planning Assistant, and Alex Landback, 
Assistant City Attorney, were also present. 

I. Call to Order and Determination of a Quorum 

Chair Chris Olson called the June 22, 2023 meeting of the Historic Preservation Board 
(“Board”) to order at 8:31 a.m. A quorum was reached, as eight Board members were 
present. 

II. Review and Approval of Previous Meeting Minutes 

Ms. Lynn Dennis motioned to approve the May 25, 2023 meeting minutes as presented. Ms. 
Natalie Oldenkamp seconded the motion. The motion passed 8—0. Ms. Britney Wilson was 
not present at the time of the vote. 

III. Old Business: 

A. Historic Preservation Board Annual Review and Lakeland Historic District Resurvey 
Project, Phase 1 Results and Recommendations Workshop to be held immediately 
following the June 22, 2023 Historic Preservation Board and Design Review Committee 
meetings (Lakeland Electric Building, Conference Rooms 1A & 1B). 

IV. New Business: NONE 

V. Adjourn for Design Review Committee.
The meeting adjourned at 8:33 a.m. 

Chair, Historic Preservation Board Senior Planner, Historic Preservation 

\\col-data\cityhall-1\CDDO\HPB.DRC\HPB-DRC 2023\06.22.23\HPB Minutes 6.22.23.docx 
1 



   
  

 
 

     
    
    

 
  

 
      

    
         

  
      

   
  

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

Lakeland Historic Districts Resurvey Project, Phase 1 
East and South Lake Morton Historic Districts 
Recommendations 

• Update status of each property within both Districts: 
o 292 properties recommended as contributing in the East Lake Morton Historic District, adding 157 
o 697 properties recommended as contributing in the South Lake Morton Historic District, adding 

169 
Staff agrees with these recommendations. 

• Pursue boundary amendments to the NRHP-listed East and South Lake Morton Historic District boundaries 
to match the locally listed boundaries: 

o In the East Lake Morton Historic District, adjust the northern boundary to match the local historic 
district boundary. 

o In the South Lake Morton Historic District, adjust northeastern, northwest, and southern district 
boundaries to match the local historic district boundary. 

Staff agrees with these recommendations. 



       
   

 
     

   
 

     
    

   
 

   
  

     
     

 
 

            
      

     
     

    
 

   
   

   
 

 

 

 

 

 

• Expand the ELM period of significance from 1900–1940 to 1900–1973. (NRHP amendment) 
Staff agrees with this recommendation. 

• Expand the SLM period of significance from 1904–1935 to 1900–1973. (NRHP amendment) 
Staff agrees with this recommendation. 

• Amend the Criteria for which the South Lake Morton Historic District is listed in the NRHP to include 
Criteria A and B in addition to Criterion C. (NRHP amendment) 

Staff agrees with this recommendation. 

• Add PO09587 - Florida Citrus Mutual Building to the ELM NRHP and Local designations as a contributing 
resource. Also individually eligible for NRHP listing. 

Staff disagrees with this recommendation; this building is contextually similar to the commercial buildings 
within the Munn Park Historic District and should be evaluated for inclusion in this district as part of Phase 
2 Resurvey work. 

• Six documented resources (PO00113 – Sorosis Club, PO00129 – Deen House, PO03411 – Park Trammell 
Building, PO03412 – Ruthven Building, PO03414 – Women’s Club of Lakeland, and PO09587 – Florida 
Citrus Mutual Building) are individually eligible for the NRHP and eligible as contributing resources to their 
respective districts. However, as these resources are either currently contributing to their respective 
districts or could contribute with amendments, PaleoWest does not recommend the pursuit of their 
individual listing. Individual listing and contributing status in an NRHP-listed historic district offer the same 
level of recognition for historic properties and provide access to the same opportunities, such as federal 
historic tax credits. 

Staff agrees with this recommendation. 



 

 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
        

            
       

   
 

 
  

       
  

 
 

     
 

      
 

   
 

    
 

    
 

             
  

 
          

       
  

 
       

  
 

 
   

 
   

AGENDA 
DESIGN REVIEW COMMITTEE 

Lakeland Electric Building, Conference Rooms 1A & 1B 
July 27, 2023 

immediately following the Historic Preservation Board Meeting 

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons with disabilities 
needing special accommodation to participate in this proceeding, or those requiring language assistance (free of charge) 
should contact the City of Lakeland ADA Specialist, Greg James, no later than 48 hours prior to the proceeding, at (863) 
834-6040, Email: Greg.james@lakelandgov.net. If hearing impaired, please contact the TDD numbers: Local - (863) 834-
8333 or 1-800-955-8771 (TDD-Telecommunications Device for the Deaf) or the Florida Relay Service Number 1-800-955-
8770 (VOICE), for assistance. 

Anyone deciding to appeal a decision by the Board on any matter considered at this or any subsequent meeting will need 
a record of the proceedings, and for purposes of that appeal, may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings 
is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 

I. Call to order, determination of a quorum, and roll call. 

II. Review and approval of the June 22, 2023 Design Review Committee meeting minutes. 

III. Review Certificates of Review administratively approved since the previous meeting. 

IV. Consideration of Certificate of Review Applications: 

A. Oath Administration for Public Testimony by Assistant City Attorney. 

B. HPB23-133 – 506 W. Belmar Street – Final Approval requested for the replacement of wood and T1-11 
siding on the house on the subject property. Owner: Ms. Kris Shubert. Applicant: Morgan Exteriors Inc. 

C. HPB23-134 – 927 S. Florida Avenue – Final Approval requested for the construction of a steel carport in 
the parking lot behind the commercial building located on the subject property. Owner: Ms. Diana Solis. 
Applicant: Ms. Erica Burris, Banyan Construction. 

D. HPB23-135 – 127 W. Belmar Street – Final Approval requested for the new construction of a single-family 
house on the subject property. Owner: Scott and Tonya Strausser. Applicant: Mr. Ernie West, Sadler 
Homes. 

V. Other Business: NONE 

VI. Adjournment. 

\\col-data\cityhall-1\CDDO\HPB.DRC\HPB-DRC 2023\07.27.23\7.27.23 DRC Agenda.docx 

mailto:Greg.james@lakelandgov.net
http:2023\07.27.23\7.27.23
mailto:Greg.james@lakelandgov.net


 

 
 

 
 

    
 

      
            

    
    

   

   

            
 

    

        
  

    

   
   

 

  

        

          
         
  

   
  

   
   

         
   

   
    

   
   

  
      

       
   

 

    
  

        

MINUTES 

DESIGN REVIEW COMMITTEE 
Lakeland Electric Building Conference Rooms 1A/B 

Thursday, June 22, 2023 

(Note: These meeting minutes comply with F.S. 286.011 and are not intended to be a verbatim transcript.) 

The City of Lakeland Historic Preservation Board’s Design Review Committee met in Regular Session; Lynn 
Dennis, Landis Fleming, Natalie Oldenkamp, Chris Olson, Cesar Perez, Michael Porter and MeLynda Rinker 
were present. Historic Preservation Board members Bruce Anderson and Britney Wilson were also present. 
Community & Economic Development Department staff Emily Foster, Senior Planner, Historic Preservation, 
Christelle Burrola, Planning Assistant, and Alex Landback, Assistant City Attorney, were also present. 

I. Call to Order and Determination of a Quorum 

The meeting was called to order by Chair MeLynda Rinker at 8:33 a.m. The Committee roll call was 
performed and a quorum was present. 

II. Review and Approval of the Previous Meeting Minutes 

Ms.  Lynn Dennis motioned to approve the May 25, 2023 meeting minutes. Mr. Cesar Perez seconded 
the motion. The motion passed 7—0. 

III. Review of Certificates of Review administratively approved. 

A list of twenty-one (21) administratively approved Certificate of Review projects covering the period 
5/11/23-6/12/23 was included with the agenda packet. There were no additional questions or comments 
about these projects. 

IV. Consideration of Certificate of Review Applications: 

A. Oath Administration for Public Testimony by Assistant City Attorney Alex Landback. 

B. HPB23-101 – 412 W. Park Street – Final Approval requested for the conversion of an 
existing carport into two enclosed recreational rooms on the subject property. 
Owner/Applicant: Mr. Francisco Chirino. 

Chair Rinker introduced the request and then asked if there were any conflicts of interest 
pertaining to this agenda item. There were no conflicts. 

Ms. Emily Foster presented the staff report, stating the subject property consists of an interior lot 
of record with a total area of 0.27 acres. The subject property contains a one-story, Masonry 
Vernacular duplex structure built circa 1958, which is a non-contributing building in the Dixieland 
Historic District. The Applicant requests to enclose an existing two-car carport to convert this 
structure into two game rooms for use by the tenants of the duplex. The carport dimensions are 
20 feet wide by 28 feet long, for a total of 560 square feet. Exterior materials used to enclose the 
carport consist of fiber cement panel siding, vinyl single hung sash windows, and 6-pane steel 
doors. The roof of the structure has been re-roofed with Galvalume ribbed metal roof panels. This 
request was prompted by Code Enforcement action and a stop-work order was issued. Most of 
the exterior work, including new siding, roofing, and window and door installation, has been 
completed. As an existing accessory structure, the building setbacks are consistent with the 
requirements of the Land Development Code. Each game room will have an interior bathroom 
with washer/dryer hookups and an additional exterior laundry room. 

Ms. Foster stated that the request was evaluated using Secretary’s Standards for Rehabilitation 
#9, #10 and Chapter 4 of the Design Guidelines for Historic Properties. In evaluating the request 
with the Standards, staff finds that the proposed accessory structure does not disturb the spatial 



    

   
   

     
  

   
  

 
      

 
  

  
      

      
   

  
  

     
     

 

   

   

   
       

 

        
        

  

   
   

   
           

 
 
 

         
           

 
         

 
 

  
        

    
    

    
  

     

relationships of the principal house, and its setting and integrity is maintained. Furthermore, the 
structure’s location in the back yard behind the duplex and screened by a privacy fence makes it 
not visible from W. Park Street. In evaluating the request with the Design Guidelines staff finds 
the materials of the accessory structure are mostly consistent with the Design Guidelines. The 
Galvalume ribbed metal roofing that has been installed on this structure is not consistent with the 
Design Guidelines in terms of allowable metal roofing or architectural style of the structure, and 
therefore should be replaced with asphalt or fiberglass shingles. Finally, while not a concern 
related to the Design Guidelines or Design Review Committee purview, the additional 
washer/dryer hookups in the bathrooms of each game room are a zoning concern and should be 
removed to prevent this structure from being illegally used as additional dwelling units on the 
subject property. As this property is zoned for single-family residential use, the legal, 
nonconforming duplex existing on the property precludes the ability to establish additional 
dwelling units on it. Ms. Foster stated staff recommends Final Approval of the request, with the 
following conditions to be approved by staff prior to building permitting: 

1. Replace metal roofing with asphalt or fiberglass shingle roofing material. 
2. Remove the washer/dryer hookups in the bathrooms of each game room. 

Chair Rinker asked if the Applicant had any additional comments or questions. Mr. Francisco 
Chirino was present in support of the request. He stated he would prefer not to remove the metal 
roof. 

Discussion ensued concerning roof material alternatives. 

There were no public comments. 

MOTION: Final approval of the request with the conditions recommended by staff, 
removing condition #2. (M. Porter/L. Dennis, 5—2. Cesar Perez and Landis Fleming voted 
against the motion). 

C. HPB23-104 – 832 S. Clayton Street – Final Approval requested for replacement of 
windows and a sliding glass door in the house on the subject property. Owner/Applicant: 
James and Debra Whitten. 

Chair Rinker introduced the request and then asked if there were any conflicts of interest 
pertaining to this agenda item. Mr. Chris Olson recused himself from the vote for this item. 

Ms. Emily Foster presented the staff report, stating the subject property is located at the northeast 
corner of South Clayton Avenue and McDonald Place that is 0.24 acres in size. This property 
contains a two-story, single-family house built circa 1947, which is a non-contributing building in 
the Biltmore-Cumberland Historic District. Stylistically, the house is a Modern Hip Cottage. The 
Applicants request to replace 28 dark-framed metal double-hung sash windows located 
throughout the house with 14 double-hung sash windows, 8 horizontal slider windows, 2 fixed 
windows, and 1 awning window matching the existing window openings. All replacement windows 
will be white vinyl and will not have a simulated divided lite appearance. The reason for this 
request is due to the existing windows not being operable or energy efficient. An existing sliding 
glass door will also be replaced with a similarly sized vinyl sliding glass door; however, this can 
be approved administratively by staff. 

Ms. Foster stated the request was evaluated using Secretary’s Standards for Rehabilitation #9, 
#10 and Chapter 6 of the Design Guidelines for Historic Properties. As a non-contributing building, 
the subject house can be afforded some flexibility from the strict interpretation of the Design 
Guidelines. Additionally, the Applicants state in their application that the existing windows are 33 
years old, which indicates these windows are not original to the subject house built circa 1947. 
Staff finds that the double-hung sash replacement windows without a divided lite appearance are 
acceptable replacement windows where proposed. Staff finds that the use of fixed and horizontal 

Page 2 



    

  
             

 
  

   
      

   
   

   
         

 
   

 

   
           

   

 

      

  

        
 

         
         

 

 
      

  

   
          

  
  

 
 

        
  

  
   

  
     

 
 

      
 

   
           

   
     

slider windows are acceptable replacement windows for the large window on the front (west) 
façade. However, for all other fixed, horizontal slider, and awning replacement windows that are 
proposed, double-hung sash windows should be used, in accordance with the Design Guidelines. 
Ms. Foster stated staff recommends approval of the request with the following conditions: 

1. All replacement windows must match existing window/window opening size. 
2. All replacement windows shall be recessed from the exterior wall face to the exterior 

window glass to provide a shadow line. Flush-mounted replacement windows are not 
permitted. Box or block framed replacement windows are recommended for adequate 
recess. Fin/Flange type windows are not recommended. 

3. Muntins (Grid/Grille) “sandwiched” between double-paned glazing shall not be permitted, 
except when installed beneath exterior-mounted muntins/grid/grille. 

4. All paired or grouped windows shall be installed with a dividing mullion of at least 3 inches 
in width between adjoining windows. 

Chair Rinker asked if the Applicant had any additional comments or questions. Mr. James Whitten 
and Mrs. Debra Whitten were present in support of the request. Mr. Whitten stated the windows 
will help reduce the noise that comes from nearby schools, as well as provide more safety. 

Discussion ensued. 

Mr. Derek Swanson with West Shore Homes was also present in support of the request. 

There were no public comments. 

MOTION: Final approval of the request with the conditions recommended by staff. (L. 
Dennis/C. Perez, 7—0) 

D. HPB231-188 – 625 E. Lime Street – Approval to Amend Certificate of Review for 
previously approved new construction project on the subject property. Owner: Lake 
Morton Apartments LLC. Applicant: The Lunz Group. 

Chair Rinker introduced the request and then asked if there were any conflicts of interest 
pertaining to this agenda item. Mr. Michael Porter recused himself from the vote for this item. Mr. 
Porter is employed with the Lunz Group. 

Ms. Emily Foster presented the staff report, stating the subject property consists of two parcels, 
approximately 0.89 acres in area, located at the southwestern corner of East Lime Street and 
South Indiana Avenue. In January 2022, a proposed four-story apartment building was approved 
with three conditions by the Design Review Committee. The building will contain 48 dwelling units, 
and have a total floor area of 45,000 square feet. The design of this building reflects a neo-
traditional aesthetic with roof shapes, porch, balcony, and window design, and several cladding 
materials, which imitate the appearance of historical architectural styles, such as Frame 
Vernacular and Bungalow. The horizontal massing of the building is broken by projecting porches, 
banding created by siding materials and paint color, and roof eaves with a wide overhang. The 
east and west sides of the building are punctuated by an angular projection on each side that 
serves the entrances into the building, while also providing visual interest to the large gable on 
these ends of the building. Materials approved for the exterior cladding of this building included: 
Brick veneer (white-wash red brick); Hardie Panel Lap siding with 6-inch exposure; and Hardie 
Board Vertical Panel siding. The Applicants now request to use a rusticated stucco cladding, 
painted Plymouth Brown (Benjamin Moore HC-73) or similar, instead of the brick veneer. All other 
exterior cladding will remain as approved. 

Ms. Foster stated the request was evaluated using Secretary’s Standards for Rehabilitation #2, 
#9, #10, and Chapter 4 of the Design Guidelines for Historic Properties. Staff finds that the 
proposed multi-family apartment building continues to meet the intent of the Standards and 
Design Guidelines in terms of scale, massing, materials, orientation, setbacks, fenestration size 

Page 3 



    

  
        

        
   

   
  

 

             
      

  

        
  

  
 

     

 

              
     

 

and alignment, and neo-traditional design. The change in cladding material from brick to 
rusticated stucco is consistent with historical materials and the use of stucco on adjacent 
buildings. In addition to the rusticated stucco that has been requested by the Applicant, staff 
recommends stucco brick as another alternative material in place of the brick cladding originally 
proposed and approved. Ms. Foster stated staff recommends final approval for the requested 
change in exterior cladding from white-wash red brick to rusticated stucco painted Plymouth 
Brown or similar. 

Chair Rinker asked if the Applicant had any additional comments or questions. Ms. Brittany 
Prevatt with The Lunz Group was present in support of the request. 

There were no public comments. 

MOTION: Final approval of the request with the conditions recommended by staff. (L. 
Dennis/L. Fleming, 6—0) 

V. Other Business: NONE 

VI. Adjournment: There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 9:33 a.m. 

Chair, Design Review Committee Senior Planner, Historic Preservation 

Page 4 



 

 

 

Certificates of Review Administratively Approved 
Between 6/13/2023 and 7/18/2023 

1. 522 E PARK ST (Contributing Building) - Remove existing wood fence and install 36 
linear feet of 6 ft. tall horizontal wood fence along a portion of the west property line, 
in the side yard of the subject property. 
Subject to the following conditions:  (HPB23-121) 

2. 1715 S FLORIDA AV (Contributing Building) - The sign faces on the existing monument 
sign on the subject property will be replaced by two new sign faces, which are digital 
printed vinyl applied to 3mm ACM panels, matching the size of the original sign face. 
Subject to the following conditions:  (HPB23-122) 

3. 714 JEFFERSON AV (Contributing Building) - Replace 5 wood double-hung sash windows 
and 1 mullion, size for size, on north side elevation of house, with 5 vinyl double-hung 
sash windows (FL#11720.9) and 1 aluminum mullion (FL#12078.1). 
Subject to the following conditions: 1. ALL REPLACEMENT WINDOWS MUST MATCH 
ORIGINAL WINDOW/ WINDOW OPENING SIZE. 
2. ALL WINDOWS SHALL BE RECESSED FROM THE EXTERIOR WALL FACE TO THE 
EXTERIOR WINDOW GLASS TO PROVIDE A SHADOW LINE. FLUSH-MOUNTED 
REPLACEMENT WINDOWS ARE NOT PERMITTED. BOX OR BLOCK FRAMED WINDOWS 
ARE RECOMMENDED. FIN/FLANGE TYPE WINDOWS ARE NOT RECOMMENDED. 
3. FOR WINDOWS WITH SIMULATED DIVIDED LITES, MUNTINS (GRIDS/GRILLES) SHALL 
BE DIMENSIONAL AND MOUNTED TO THE EXTERIOR OF THE GLAZING (GLASS) WITH A 
MINIMUM SURFACE RELIEF OF A ¼ INCH. MUNTINS “SANDWICHED” BETWEEN 
DOUBLE-PANED GLAZING SHALL NOT BE PERMITTED, EXCEPT WHEN INSTALLED 
BENEATH EXTERIOR-MOUNTED MUNTINS. 
4. ALL PAIRED OR GROUPED WINDOWS SHALL BE INSTALLED WITH A DIVIDING 
MULLION OF AT LEAST 3 INCHES IN WIDTH BETWEEN ADJOINING WINDOWS. 

IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE APPLICANT TO ENSURE THAT THE REPLACEMENT 
WINDOWS INSTALLED ARE CONSISTENT WITH THE DESIGN AND METHOD OF 
INSTALLATION STATED ON THE CERTIFICATE OF REVIEW.  FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH 
THESE CONDITIONS WILL RESULT IN DISAPPROVAL OF THE BUILDING PERMIT FINAL 
INSPECTION AND WILL REQUIRE COMPLIANT WINDOWS TO BE INSTALLED REGARDLESS 
OF FINANCIAL IMPACT TO THE APPLICANT. ACCEPTANCE OF A BUILDING PERMIT FOR 
REPLACEMENT WINDOWS CONSTITUTES APPLICANT’S ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF THESE 
CONDITIONS. 

WINDOW PRODUCTS STATED ON THE APPROVED BUILDING PERMIT SHALL NOT BE 
SUBSITUTED OR REPLACED WITH A PRODUCT FROM A DIFFERENT MANUFACTUER, OR 
A DIFFERENT MODEL NUMBER FROM THE SAME MANUFACTURER, WITHOUT STAFF 
APPROVAL. (HPB23-123) 

7/18/2023 3:46:21 PM 



 

 

 

 

 

 

Certificates of Review Administratively Approved 
Between 6/13/2023 and 7/18/2023 

4. 223 N FLORIDA AV (Non-Contributing Building) - Installation of 5V crimp metal roofing 
panels (non-striated) (FL#4595.1 or FL#4595.2) on a portion of low-pitched roofing on 
the subject building behind the parapet wall, not visible from the street. 
Subject to the following conditions: 5V CRIMP METAL ROOFING (FL#4595.1 OR 
FL#4595.2) MUST NOT HAVE STRIATIONS BETWEEN V CRIMPS. FLAT PANEL ONLY 
BETWEEN V CRIMPS. (HPB23-124) 

5. 526 W PARK ST (Contributing Building) - Enclosure of an existing covered porch on the 
rear of the subject house, removing four windows and one door. The window and door 
openings will be enclosed with typical frame construction and clad in Hardie siding 
matching existing. One new window opening will be constructed, with a JELD-WEN vinyl 
single hung window (FL#14104.8) with a one-over-one lite configuration installed. 

As this alteration is located at the rear of the subject house and not visible from the 
street, and rear porch enclosures are a common historical occurrence on older houses, 
this alteration was deemed appropriate and able to receive minor review approval. 
Subject to the following conditions:  (HPB23-125) 

6. 807 S INGRAHAM AV (Contributing Building) - Installation of 115 linear feet of 6 ft. tall 
wood privacy fence along rear property line of subject property. 
Subject to the following conditions:  (HPB23-126) 

7. 208 CANNON ST (Contributing Building) - Replacement of a portion of rotted wood lap 
siding on the west side of the subject house, at rear of house, with Hardie board lap 
siding, matching the exposure dimension of the historic wood siding. 
Subject to the following conditions: Hardie board lap siding must matching the 
exposure dimension of the historic wood siding. (HPB23-127) 

8. 934 VISTABULA ST (Non-Contributing Building) - Minor exterior alterations to include: 
1. Addition of a new concrete driveway, 8 ft. wide by 40 ft. long, in the west side yard of 
the subject property. 
2. Replacement of the front door with a 9-lite wood door. 
3. Installation of a fabric awning over the front stoop area. 
4. Installation of shutters on three windows on the front elevation of the house; these 
shutters will be decorative and will not functionally cover the window openings; 
however this treatment is appropriate given the non-contributing status of this house 
and its Ranch architectural style, which often historically featured purely decorative 
shutters. 
Subject to the following conditions:  (HPB23-128) 

9. 201 LENOX ST (Contributing Building) - Replacement of shingle roof of the 2-story 
Bungalow house with a 5V crimp metal panel roof (non-striated) (FL#4595.2). 
Subject to the following conditions:  (HPB23-129) 

7/18/2023 3:46:21 PM 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Certificates of Review Administratively Approved 
Between 6/13/2023 and 7/18/2023 

10. 1123 SOUTH BL (Non-Contributing Building) - Replacing concrete paver retaining wall in 
front yard with a brick retaining wall, 16" in height, with black wrought iron look fence, 
32" in height above the retaining wall. 
Subject to the following conditions:  (HPB23-130) 

11. 127 W PARK ST (Contributing Building) - Replacement of existing 6 ft. tall wood privacy 
fence along subject property's interior side property lines with new 6 ft. tall board on 
board wood privacy fence. 
Subject to the following conditions:  (HPB23-131) 

12. 412 W PATTERSON ST (Non-Contributing Building) - Installation of a 4 ft. tall wood or 
vinyl picket fence along the front property line. Installation of a 6 ft. wood privacy fence 
on side property lines. 
Subject to the following conditions: 4 ft. tall chain link fence installed at the front 
property line must be removed. 6 ft. wood privacy fence must be setback 5 feet from 
the front property line and at least 3 feet from the alley at the rear of the property. 
(HPB23-132) 

13. 830 JOHNSON AV (Contributing Building) - Replacing 65 linear feet of existing 5 ft. tall 
chain link fence in side (north) yard with a 6 ft. tall matte white vinyl fence. While fence 
is located on the side of the subject property, the section of fence is also in the rear 
yard and not visible from the street. 
Subject to the following conditions:  (HPB23-136) 

14. 1105 KING AV (Contributing Building) - Replacing shingle roof with 5V crimp metal roof 
(FL#24397.1). 
Subject to the following conditions:  (HPB23-137) 

15. 405 W PATTERSON ST (Contributing Building) - Installation of 215.4 linear feet of tan 
vinyl privacy fence, enclosing rear yard of subject property. 
Subject to the following conditions:  (HPB23-138) 

16. 507 W PATTERSON ST (Non-Contributing Building) - Demolition of an existing shed in 
the back yard of the subject property. 
Subject to the following conditions:  (HPB23-139) 

7/18/2023 3:46:21 PM 



 

 

 

Certificates of Review Administratively Approved 
Between 6/13/2023 and 7/18/2023 

17. 756 JOHNSON AV (Non-Contributing Building) - 1. Replacing existing aluminum 
windows with Silver Line Building Products Corp. Single Hung Windows (FL#14911). 
2. Replacing existing metal sliding glass doors with Silver Line Building Products Corp. 
Sliding Exterior Door Assemblies (FL#14998). 
3. Replacing existing solid entry doors with solid Plastpro Inc. / Nanya Plastics 
Corp.Exterior Doors. (FL#17347). 
Subject to the following conditions: 1. ALL REPLACEMENT WINDOWS MUST MATCH 
ORIGINAL WINDOW/ WINDOW OPENING SIZE. 
2. ALL WINDOWS SHALL BE RECESSED FROM THE EXTERIOR WALL FACE TO THE 
EXTERIOR WINDOW GLASS TO PROVIDE A SHADOW LINE. FLUSH-MOUNTED 
REPLACEMENT WINDOWS ARE NOT PERMITTED. BOX OR BLOCK FRAMED WINDOWS 
ARE RECOMMENDED. FIN/FLANGE TYPE WINDOWS ARE NOT RECOMMENDED. 
3. FOR WINDOWS WITH SIMULATED DIVIDED LITES, MUNTINS (GRIDS/GRILLES) SHALL 
BE DIMENSIONAL AND MOUNTED TO THE EXTERIOR OF THE GLAZING (GLASS) WITH A 
MINIMUM SURFACE RELIEF OF A ¼ INCH. MUNTINS “SANDWICHED” BETWEEN 
DOUBLE-PANED GLAZING SHALL NOT BE PERMITTED, EXCEPT WHEN INSTALLED 
BENEATH EXTERIOR-MOUNTED MUNTINS. 

IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE APPLICANT TO ENSURE THAT THE REPLACEMENT 
WINDOWS INSTALLED ARE CONSISTENT WITH THE DESIGN AND METHOD OF 
INSTALLATION STATED ON THE CERTIFICATE OF REVIEW.  FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH 
THESE CONDITIONS WILL RESULT IN DISAPPROVAL OF THE BUILDING PERMIT FINAL 
INSPECTION AND WILL REQUIRE COMPLIANT WINDOWS TO BE INSTALLED REGARDLESS 
OF FINANCIAL IMPACT TO THE APPLICANT. ACCEPTANCE OF A BUILDING PERMIT FOR 
REPLACEMENT WINDOWS CONSTITUTES APPLICANT’S ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF THESE 
CONDITIONS. 

WINDOW PRODUCTS STATED ON THE APPROVED BUILDING PERMIT SHALL NOT BE 
SUBSITUTED OR REPLACED WITH A PRODUCT FROM A DIFFERENT MANUFACTUER, OR 
A DIFFERENT MODEL NUMBER FROM THE SAME MANUFACTURER, WITHOUT STAFF 
APPROVAL. (HPB23-140) 

18. 825 S FLORIDA AV (Non-Contributing Building) - Installation of a non-illuminated 4 ft. 
tall by X 8 ft. wide (32 SF) monument sign with embossed faces on a 2 feet tall base. 
The total height of the sign, including base, is 6 feet. 
Subject to the following conditions:  (HPB23-141) 

19. 1119 JOSEPHINE ST ( Building) - 1. Demolition of an existing accessory dwelling unit on 
the property, built in 1955 and non-contributing to the Lake Hunter Terrace Historic 
District. 
2. Removal of existing brick driveway and construction of a new 10-ft. wide concrete 
driveway, utilizing existing curb cut/driveway apron. 
Subject to the following conditions:  (HPB23-142) 

7/18/2023 3:46:21 PM 



 

Certificates of Review Administratively Approved 
Between 6/13/2023 and 7/18/2023 

20. 926 OSCEOLA ST (Contributing Building) - Replacing the existing driveway and walkway 
on the subject property with a paver driveway; limiting the width of the driveway to 10 
feet wide, but allowing the existing width of 11 feet 3 inches beginning in front of the 
carport to remain. 
Subject to the following conditions:  (HPB23-143) 

7/18/2023 3:46:21 PM 



    
 

 
 

 
 

 
  
   

 
 

 
     

    
   

 
 

 
  

   
  

 

 
 

         
  

 
  

 

          
          

       
     

      
    

        
 

     
    

 
 

 
 

     
   

  
 

    
 

       
       

 

      
   

 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION BOARD 
DESIGN REVIEW COMMITTEE 

STAFF REPORT 
July 27, 2023 

Project # HPB23-133 
Project Type Minor Exterior Alteration 

Property Address; 
Historic Name 

506 W. Belmar Street; 
The James and Ruby Fennell House (1925 Lakeland City Directory) 

Historic District; FMSF# Dixieland Historic District; #DL 336 
Owner/Applicant Ms. Kris Shubert / Morgan Exteriors Inc. 

Future Land Use; Zoning; 
Context District; SPI 

Residential Medium; RA-4; 
Urban Neighborhood; Dixieland SPI 

Existing Use Residential 
Adjacent Properties Residential 
Previous Approvals N/A 

REQUEST 

The Applicant requests approval to remove the existing wood novelty and T1-11 siding on the subject house and 
replace with Hardie lap siding. 

SUMMARY OF BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

The subject property consists of one lot of record (Dixieland Subdivision, Block N, Lot 2), which is 0.16 acres in 
size. On the property is a one-story, single-family house built circa 1925, which is a contributing building in the 
Dixieland Historic District. The architectural style of the house is Craftsman Bungalow, which is expressed by a 
gable roof pierced by a brick chimney, a full-width, hipped roof front porch with shallow gable supported by 
tapered columns on brick plinths, exposed rafter tails with a curved profile, wooden novelty siding, and vinyl 
single-hung sash windows with a one-over-one lite configuration. Alterations include removal of all original 
windows and the enclosure of a portion of the front porch with T1-11 vertical siding. 

The Applicant requests to remove the existing wood novelty siding and T1-11 vertical siding and replace with 
Hardieplank lap siding. Hardie trim will also be used to replace the corner boards, window and door trim, as well 
as the gable vents. 

APPLICABLE GUIDLINES: 

The Secretary of Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation (“Standards”) and the City of Lakeland’s Design Guidelines 
for Historic Properties (“Design Guidelines”) are the basis for review per the City of Lakeland Land Development 
Code (“LDC”), Article 11: Historic Preservation Standards. 

The following Standards apply to this request: 

Standard #2. The historic character of a property will be retained and preserved. The removal of distinctive 
materials or alteration of features, spaces, and spatial relationships that characterize a property will be avoided. 

Standard #5. Distinctive materials, features, finishes, and construction techniques or examples of craftsmanship 
that characterize a property will be preserved. 

y:\cddo\hpb.drc\hpb-drc 2023\07.27.23\506 w. belmar street (hpb23-133)\506 w. belmar street staff report.docx Page 1 



    
 

  
      

     
  

 

      
  

      
   

 

 
     

 
 

    
 

   
 

 
    
     

 
    
      

      
    

  
 

 
 

    
    

 

            
       

      
      

      
              

      
     

   
 

 
 

     
 

       
    

           

Standard #6. Deteriorated historic features will be repaired rather than replaced. Where the severity of 
deterioration requires replacement of a distinctive feature, the new feature will match the old in design, color, 
texture, and, where possible, materials. Replacement of missing features will be substantiated by documentary 
and physical evidence. 

Standard #9. New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction will not destroy historic materials, 
features, and spatial relationships that characterize the property. The new works will be differentiated from the 
old and will be compatible with the historic materials, features, size, scale, and proportion, and massing to protect 
the integrity of the property and its environment. 

Standard #10. New additions and adjacent or related new construction will be undertaken in such a manner that, 
if removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the historic property and its environment would be 
unimpaired. 

The following Design Guidelines apply to this project: 
Chapter 6 Exterior Architectural Features: Alteration and Maintenance 
Sub-Chapter 6.5 Siding and Exterior Wall Cladding. 

Wood Siding: 
• Preserve and maintain original wood siding. Repair in-kind where needed. 
• If siding is replaced, all trim board dimensions and joinery details should be maintained and kept 

visible. 
• Use the same species of wood where possible. 
• One alternative for wood is Fiber cement, a mixture of Portland cement, cellulose or wood fiber 

material, sand, and other components. It can be formed into a variety of siding patterns, have a 
smooth or embossed face, or be textured for a cedar look. These products may be used as a 
replacement material or for new construction. 

ANALYSIS: 

While the repair or replacement of small areas of siding may be reviewed and approved by staff, the wholesale 
replacement of all exterior wall cladding requires the review and approval of the Design Review Committee. 

The original wood siding is novelty siding with a 3.5-inch exposure and appears to be in an advanced state of 
deterioration. While Hardie siding is typically an acceptable replacement for wood lap siding, the Hardie siding 
proposed will not match the profile or exposure dimension of the original siding, and therefore its use cannot be 
supported by staff, consistent with the Standards and Design Guidelines. Staff recommends using new wood 
novelty siding matching the 3.5-inch exposure and curved profile of the historic wood siding. Staff finds that Hardie 
lap siding with an exposure dimension of no greater than 6 inches may be used to replace the T1-11 siding, as this 
is not a historical cladding material. Staff also finds that Hardie trim material may be used to replace corner boards, 
window and door trim, and gable vents, as long as the replacement material matches the historical material in 
dimension and profile, consistent with the Standards and Design Guidelines. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Approval of the request with the following conditions, to be reviewed and approved by staff at permitting: 

1. Use new wood novelty siding matching the 3.5-inch exposure and curved profile of the historic wood 
siding to replace the historic wood siding. 

2. Use Hardie lap siding with an exposure dimension of no greater than 6 inches to replace the T1-11 siding. 

y:\cddo\hpb.drc\hpb-drc 2023\07.27.23\506 w. belmar street (hpb23-133)\506 w. belmar street staff report.docx Page 2 



    
 

       
     

 
       

  

3. Use Hardie trim material matching the dimension and profile of the historical corner boards, window and 
door trim, and gable vents, to replace these features. 

Report prepared by: Emily Foster, Senior Planner, Historic Preservation 
Liaison to the Historic Preservation Board 

y:\cddo\hpb.drc\hpb-drc 2023\07.27.23\506 w. belmar street (hpb23-133)\506 w. belmar street staff report.docx Page 3 





























































   
 

 
 

 
 

 
   

  
  
 

  
 

   
    

  
 

  
 

  
   

    
 

 
 

         
 

 
  

 

    
    

    
      

      
      

 
 

 

     
     

       
      

 
 

 

     
  

 
 

    
   

 

 
   

 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION BOARD 
DESIGN REVIEW COMMITTEE 

STAFF REPORT 
July 27, 2023 

Project # HPB23-134 
Project Type Accessory Structure 

Property Address; 
Historic Name 

927 S. Florida Avenue 
N/A 

Historic District; FMSF# Dixieland; N/A 
Owner/Applicant Ms. Diana Solis /Ms. Erica Burris, Banyan Construction 

Zoning; Future Land Use; 
Context District; SPI; CRA 

C-2; Mixed Commercial Corridor; 
Urban Corridor; Dixieland SPI; Dixieland CRA 

Existing Use Commercial 
Adjacent Properties Commercial and Residential 
Previous Approvals Wall Sign, 3/5/2018 (HPB18-063); Awnings, 12/20/2021 (HPB21-262). 

REQUEST 

The Applicant requests final approval to install an accessory structure in the parking lot on the west side of the 
existing building. 

SUMMARY OF BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

The subject property is located on the southwestern corner of South Florida Avenue and Cannon Street in the 
Dixieland CRA Commercial Corridor, and consists of one lot of record (Cannon& Johnsons Addition, Block 4, Lot 
1) that is 0.15 acres in size. On the property is a masonry vernacular building built circa 1968 that is non-
contributing to the Dixieland Historic District and has served as a podiatrist’s office for several years. To the west 
of the building, the property also contains a surface parking lot, on which the Applicant requests to install a steel 
carport measuring 20 feet wide by 20 feet long and 8 feet tall over two of the existing parking spaces. 

APPLICABLE GUIDELINES: 

The Secretary of Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation (“Standards”), the City of Lakeland’s Design Guidelines 
for Historic Properties (“Design Guidelines”), and the Dixieland CRA Commercial Corridor Design Guidelines (“CRA 
Guidelines”) are the basis for review for the Dixieland CRA Commercial Corridor area of the Dixieland Historic 
District, per the City of Lakeland Land Development Code (“LDC”), Article 11: Historic Preservation Standards. 

The following Standards apply to this project: 

#10. New additions and adjacent or related new construction will be undertaken in such a manner that, if 
removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the historic property and its environment would be 
unimpaired. 

The following Design Guidelines apply to this project: 
Chapter 4: Historical Development Patterns and New Construction 

Sub-Chapter 4.9.2: Secondary Structures 
• Accessory structures that complement the architectural character of the principal building through the 

use of similar materials and simplified architectural elements. 

y:\cddo\hpb.drc\hpb-drc 2023\07.27.23\927 s. florida avenue (hpb23-134)\927 s. florida avenue staff report.docx Page 1 



   
 

    
     

 
   

 
    

 
  

 

 
   

 
 

 
   

  

    
     

      
   

  
   

 
     
     

 
 

 

       
         

  
 

  
  

   
 

       
   

 
 

 

    
    

    
 

      
  

• Accessory structures should be placed towards the rear of the property to minimize visibility from the 
street. Use of landscape screening and/or privacy fencing to reduce visibility of storage sheds and other 
utilitarian-designed outbuildings is recommended. 

• Detached accessory structures that are excessively large and compete with the scale, massing, or height 
of the primary structure are not acceptable. 

• Secondary structures with a gambrel or “barn style” roof form are not acceptable. 

Chapter 6: Exterior Architectural Features: Alteration and Maintenance 

Sub-Chapter 6.1.5: Roof Materials 
• Only flat panel 5V crimp and standing seam metal roofing is permitted in the historic districts, and only 

for buildings that reflect the Craftsman Bungalow, Queen Anne, Frame Vernacular, Colonial Revival, and 
Shotgun architectural styles. 

The following CRA Guidelines apply to this project: 

Chapter VI. Miscellaneous Standards, Sub-Chapter F. Accessory Structures 
• If an accessory structure exceeds two hundred (200) square feet in size, the structure should be 

constructed to match the style, design, materials, and colors of the principal building. 
• All accessory structures should be located to the rear of the existing buildings line of the principal 

structure.  Arbors, pergolas and trellises are exempt from this requirement. 
• Accessory structures shall have the same architectural detail, color, material, design elements and roof 

design as the primary structure. 
• Accessory structures shall be located no closer to the side property line than the principal structure. 
• Accessory structures shall be located no closer than three (3) feet from the alley right-of-way lines. 

ANALYSIS: 

As the existing building on site is a non-contributing building within the Dixieland Historic District, the requested 
carport is consistent with Standard #10 with respect to maintaining the integrity of the property if removed in 
the future. 

While the proposed location of the carport at the rear of the subject building is consistent with the Design 
Guidelines and CRA Guidelines, the design and material of this structure are inconsistent with both sets of 
Guidelines, and do not reflect the design or materials of the principal building. 

Regarding zoning concerns, the setbacks of the proposed carport appear to meet the setback and height 
requirements for accessory structures in the Land Development Code. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

As the request is not consistent with the Design Guidelines for Historic Properties or Dixieland CRA Commercial 
Corridor Design Guidelines with respect to the design and materials of accessory structures complementing 
and/or reflecting the principal building on this property, staff recommends denial of the request as submitted. 

Report prepared by: Emily M. Foster, Senior Planner, Historic Preservation 
Liaison to the Historic Preservation Board 

y:\cddo\hpb.drc\hpb-drc 2023\07.27.23\927 s. florida avenue (hpb23-134)\927 s. florida avenue staff report.docx Page 2 









FRONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION 
1/4" = 1'-0" 1/4" = 1'-0" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB #  

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS #

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: AS NOTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEER OF RECORD:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
   2

AutoCAD SHX Text
I HEREBY CERTIFY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAPTER 16, SECTION 1609 OF THE 2020 FLORIDA BUILDING CODE FOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
THAT THE CONSTRUCTION PLANS SHOWN HEREON ARE IN COMPLIANCE WITH

AutoCAD SHX Text
130 M.P.H. ULTIMATE DESIGN WIND SPEED (RISK CATEGORY I) ALONG WITH

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE ENTIRE 2020 FLORIDA BUILDING CODE, RESIDENTIAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T&G CARPORTS & SHEDS 1509 BOWMAN AVE PLANT CITY, FL 33563

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTRACTOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
4-D ENGINEERING LLC 1074 FLORIDA AVE S STE. 201 LAKELAND, FL 33803 PHONE: (308) 308-6625 FL CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION # 31557 CAREY L. WILKINSON, P.E. - FL # 80472

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:05/31/2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
927 S FLORIDA AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE SLAB

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST. OR OPTIONAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETAIL: "B" OR "F"

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLUMN CONNECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIDGE CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIDGE CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOIST CONNECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE DETAIL "D"

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPTION "C" FOR RAFTERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
45 DEG. LAT. BRACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE SLAB

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST. OR OPTIONAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOOTING & ATTACHMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE DETAIL "D1" OPTIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
(I, II, III, IVI)

cwilk
Stamp



SIDING & ROOF PANEL ATTACHMENT SIDE DETAIL FOR ROOF & PANEL 

CONNECTION  "A" CONNECTION  "B" CONNECTION  "C" TYP.  TEK. SCREW PATTERN TYP.  TEK. SCREW PATTERN 

TYP. REAR WALL TO BASE CONNECTION TYP.  COLUMN TO BASE TYP.  RAFTER TO POST SIDING & ROOF PANEL ATTACHMENT 
1/2" = 1'-0" 

CONNECTION  "D" CONNECTION  "E" CONNECTION  "F" 
TYP. 90° CONNECTION TYP. 90° CONNECTION TYP. 90° CONNECTION 

TYPICAL CONNECTION DETAILS ( A, B, C, D, E, & F) 

FOOTING OPTION I FOOTING OPTION II 

FOOTING OPTION III FOOTING OPTION VII 

CARPORT: COLUMN AND STUD PLAN 

1/4" = 1'-0" 

TYPICAL FOOTING & ATTACHMENT DETAILS 
1/2" = 1'-0" 

130 MPH (3 SEC. GUST) 
OPENINGS (ENCLOSED BUILDING) 

WINDOW OR DOOR WIND PRESSURE 
OPENING SQ. FT. END ZONE 

POSITIVE NEGATIVE 
10 +30.4 -40.7 
20 +29.0 -38.0 
30 +28.4 -36.7 
40 +27.8 -35.5 
50 +27.2 -34.3 
60 +26.9 -33.8 
70 -33.2 
80 

+26.7 
-32.7 

90 
+26.4 
+26.2 -32.1 

100+ +25.9 -31.6 

COMPONENT & CLADDING WIND LOADS 
**WORSE CASE LOADING SHOWN** 

ALL OTHER BUILDING ROOF OVERHANG COMPONENT ZONE LOADS LOADS 

1 -59.3 +13.6/-33.7 

2e, 2n, 2r -86.3 +13.6/-49.2 

3e, 3r -84.7 +13.6/-58.4 

4 N/A +18.2/-19.8 

5 N/A +18.2/-24.4 

ROOF: 
LIVE LOAD (TRUSS TOP CHORD) - 20 P.S.F. 
DEAD LOAD (TRUSS TOP CHORD) - 5 P.S.F.

WIND DESIGN ASSUMPTIONS: 
BUILDING EXPOSURE - B 
BUILDING RISK CATEGORY - I 
MEAN ROOF HEIGHT 30' OR LESS 
HEIGHT & EXPOSURE ADJUSTMENT 
   COEFFICIENT = 1.0 

INTERNAL PRESSURE COEFFICIENTS: 
"PARTIALLY ENCLOSED" STRUCTURES  =  +/- 0.55 
"ENCLOSED" STRUCTURES  =  +/- 0.18 

WIND SPEED SHOWN AT THE BOTTOM RIGHT 
CORNER OF THIS SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1)-#5 CONT

AutoCAD SHX Text
16"

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(LAP MIN. 25")

AutoCAD SHX Text
6x6 W1.4 x W1.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR FIBERMESH

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" THK. CONCRETE SLAB-ON GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(MIN, 2,500PSI) W/6 x 6 W1.4 x W1.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIRE MESH OVER MIN. 6 MIL VISQUEEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ON CLEAN, TREATED FILL, COMPACTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO MIN. 2,500PSF. (FIBER MESH OPT.) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
REBAR TO BE MIN. 60,000PSI RATED

AutoCAD SHX Text
(BUILDER TO SPECIFY TYPE OF SOIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREATMENT OR APPROVED SYSTEM)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ON CHART

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLUMN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"A","B","C" OR "E"

AutoCAD SHX Text
"A","B","C" OR "E"

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASE PLATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ON CHART

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" EXPANSION, STUD OR SLEEVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(OPT.-1/2" A.B. MIN. 7" EMBED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANCHORS-MIN. EMBED = 2 1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. 1 1/4" FROM EDGE OF SLAB

AutoCAD SHX Text
"A","B","C" OR "E"

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ON CHART

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"x4" PT PINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(OPTIONAL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASE PLATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
WELD 2"x2"x 1/8" ANGLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ATTACH TO BASE W/

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLUMN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"A","B","C" OR "E"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ON CHART

AutoCAD SHX Text
TIE DOWN ANCHOR ENGINEERING #

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDISTURBED SOIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
(14-3025) AT 70" MAX. SPACING

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. EMBED DEPTH OF 26" IN

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN PULL OUT = 2,500lbs

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) #12x1" TEK SCREWS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO EA. ANCHOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" EXISTING. CONC. SLAB

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASE PLATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"A","B","C" OR "E"

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ON CHART

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEAR STRENGTH 6,900 P.S.I.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EMBED OF 2 1/2" W/ PULL OUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
STRENGTH = 5,384 P.S.I.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"%%C WEDGE ANCHOR W/MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
"A","B","C" OR "E"

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLUMN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ON CHART

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDING OR EQUAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPTIONAL STEEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB #  

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS #

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: AS NOTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEER OF RECORD:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
   1

AutoCAD SHX Text
I HEREBY CERTIFY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAPTER 16, SECTION 1609 OF THE 2020 FLORIDA BUILDING CODE FOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
THAT THE CONSTRUCTION PLANS SHOWN HEREON ARE IN COMPLIANCE WITH

AutoCAD SHX Text
130 M.P.H. ULTIMATE DESIGN WIND SPEED (RISK CATEGORY I) ALONG WITH

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE ENTIRE 2020 FLORIDA BUILDING CODE, RESIDENTIAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TIE PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
"L" ON CHART

AutoCAD SHX Text
"J" ON CHART

AutoCAD SHX Text
(6) TEK SCREWS

AutoCAD SHX Text
"A","B","C" OR "E"

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLUMN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ON CHART

AutoCAD SHX Text
ON CHART

AutoCAD SHX Text
"A","B","C" OR "G"

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"A","B","C" OR "G"

AutoCAD SHX Text
"L" ON CHART

AutoCAD SHX Text
"J" ON CHART

AutoCAD SHX Text
(6) TEK SCREWS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TIE PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ON CHART

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ON CHART

AutoCAD SHX Text
"A","B","C" OR "E"

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLUMN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"A","B","C" OR "G"

AutoCAD SHX Text
"A","B","C" OR "G"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TIE PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(4) TEK SCREWS

AutoCAD SHX Text
"J" ON CHART

AutoCAD SHX Text
"M" ON CHART

AutoCAD SHX Text
"J" ON CHART

AutoCAD SHX Text
(3) TEK SCREWS

AutoCAD SHX Text
"A","B","C" OR "E"

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ON CHART

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLUMN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ON CHART

AutoCAD SHX Text
"A","B","C" OR "E"

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ON CHART

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLUMN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ON CHART

AutoCAD SHX Text
WELDED 8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSERT

AutoCAD SHX Text
(3) TEK SCREWS

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" INSERT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ON CHART

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAFTER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"A","B","C" OR "E"

AutoCAD SHX Text
"J" ON CHART

AutoCAD SHX Text
ON CHART

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLUMN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"A","B","C" OR "E"

AutoCAD SHX Text
"A","B","C" OR "G"

AutoCAD SHX Text
"J" ON CHART

AutoCAD SHX Text
(3) TEK SCREWS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ON CHART

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" INSERT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WELDED ROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROUND COLUMN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ON CHART

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETAIL "F"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCREWS 9" SPACING TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(H) #12x1" LONG TEK.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRUSS/POST (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCREWS 9" SPACING TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(H) #12x1" LONG TEK.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D1

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USECTION     

AutoCAD SHX Text
T&G CARPORTS & SHEDS 1509 BOWMAN AVE PLANT CITY, FL 33563

AutoCAD SHX Text
4-D ENGINEERING LLC 1074 FLORIDA AVE S STE. 201 LAKELAND, FL 33803 PHONE: (308) 308-6625 FL CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION # 31557 CAREY L. WILKINSON, P.E. - FL # 80472

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTRACTOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLORIDA PRODUCT APPROVALS: - ROLL UP DOORS - ASTA - FL8888 - SECTIONAL DOORS - COPLAY - 15279.7 - MAN DOOR - FL1722 R4 - WALL AND ROOR SHEETING - 29 GA STEEL PANEL - FL6508.3-R2

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPTIONS: "A","B","C" OR "E"

AutoCAD SHX Text
POST & BEAM SEE CHART

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONNECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UDetail of Window Framing

AutoCAD SHX Text
D3

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" = 1'-0"     

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USECTION     

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETAIL "D"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETAIL "D"

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONNECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPTIONAL WINDOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
36"x36":FRT, BACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR EITHER SIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" EXISTING. CONC. SLAB

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" WELDED STUB

AutoCAD SHX Text
5"x5"x1/4" PLATE w/

AutoCAD SHX Text
(3) 1/2" A.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. BENT PIPE FRAME @60" OR LESS COVERED W/29ga. CORRIGATED STEEL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(SHEATHING TO BE CONTINUOUS OVER THREE OR MORE SUPPORTS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UROOF NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIGHT-FRAME TRUSS CONSTRUCTION SIGN TO BE ADDED TO BUILDING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANS COMPLY WITH FLORIDA FIRE PREVENTION CODE SEVENTH EDITION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:05/31/2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" FROM EA. VERTICAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLUMN OR STUD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANCHOR LOCATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANCHOR BOLT OR WEDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
W/MAX. SPACING OF 5'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEEL COLUMN & STUD

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
927 S FLORIDA AVE

cwilk
Stamp



    
 

 
 

 
 

 
  
     
 
 

 
 

    
      
 
 

 
 

  
  
  

 

 
 

         
  

 
  

 

           
          

 

         
          

            
        

   
  

 

  
 

  
       

  
     

 
    

     
 

   
       

      
    

 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION BOARD 
DESIGN REVIEW COMMITTEE 

STAFF REPORT 
July 27, 2023 

Project # HPB23-135 
Project Type New Construction of a Single-Family House 

Property Address; 
Historic Name 

127 W. Belmar Street 
N/A 

Historic District; FMSF# Dixieland Historic District; N/A 
Owner/Applicant Scott and Tonya Strausser / Mr. Ernie West, Sadler Homes Inc. 

Zoning; Context District; 
Future Land Use; SPI 

RA-4; Urban Neighborhood; 
Residential Medium; Dixieland SPI 

Existing Use Residential 
Adjacent Properties Residential 
Previous Approvals N/A 

REQUEST 

The Applicant requests approval to build a one-story, single-family house with attached garage on the subject 
property. 

SUMMARY OF BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

The subject property an interior lot of record (Dixieland, Block K, Lot 18) and consists of 0.17 acres (50 feet wide 
by 145 feet deep); this lot is currently vacant and has alley access at the rear (north side) of the property. 

The Applicant requests to build a one-story, single-family house consisting of approximately 1,638 square feet of 
living area. The home will feature a neo-traditional aesthetic reflecting elements of the Bungalow and Frame 
Vernacular architectural styles, such as a gabled roof and gabled front porch supported by simple square 
columns, windows with a one-over-one lite configuration, and a front entry consisting of three quarter-lite 
double doors. An attached garage is proposed at the rear elevation of the house, which will be accessed from 
the alley, and an integrated lanai will be located on the west elevation of the house. 

Materials proposed for the new house include: 

Scope Material 
Foundation Concrete stem wall foundation raised 22 inches above grade (finished floor is 25 

inches above grade) with a stucco finish 
Exterior Cladding Hardie lap siding with a 6-inch exposure; Hardie board-and-batten and Hardie 

shingle siding in the gables 
Trim/Casing Hardie trim and casing 
Windows Vinyl single-hung sash windows with 4-inch mullions between paired/grouped 

windows 
Doors Material TBD; three-quarter lite double doors; double French doors in lanai 
Roof Asphalt architectural shingles on 6/12 pitch roof. 
Fascia/Soffit Hardie or wood fascia with vinyl soffit 
Porch Concrete floor and steps, floor will be covered in pavers; Hardie-wrapped 

columns 

y:\cddo\hpb.drc\hpb-drc 2023\07.27.23\127 w. belmar street (hpb23-135)\127 w. belmar street staff report.docx Page 1 



    
 

   
 

           
         

    
 

 
 

     
      

 
 

    
 

  
   

    
     

 

      
  

 
 

    
   

 
   

   
       

    
   

   
     

 
  
   
    

   
         
    
   

 
 

 

          
        

        
     

    
 

Exterior Paint Colors TBD 

The site plan proposed for the proposed new construction shows orientation of the home’s front façade 
towards West Belmar Street. The proposed building setbacks and porch depth for the house meet the Land 
Development Code’s Urban Neighborhood Standards. 

APPLICABLE GUIDELINES: 

The Secretary of Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation (“Standards”) and the City of Lakeland’s Design 
Guidelines for Historic Properties (“Design Guidelines”) are the basis for review per the City of Lakeland Land 
Development Code (“LDC”), Article 11: Historic Preservation Standards. 

The following Standards apply to this request: 

Standard #9. New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction will not destroy historic 
materials, features, and spatial relationships that characterize the property. The new works will be 
differentiated from the old and will be compatible with the historic materials, features, size, scale, and 
proportion, and massing to protect the integrity of the property and its environment. 

Standard #10. New additions and adjacent or related new construction will be undertaken in such a manner 
that, if removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the historic property and its environment 
would be unimpaired. 

The following Design Guidelines apply to this project: 
Chapter 4: Historical Development Patterns and New Construction 
Sub-Chapter 4.6: New Residential/Infill Construction.  

• The scale and massing of the new building, including its fenestration, roof height and shape, and 
elevation should be consistent with surrounding contributing buildings. 

• Building Form – the front façade of buildings should be closely aligned with other buildings on the 
block to maintain a uniform setback; consistent spacing of buildings maintains rhythm of historic 
neighborhood development pattern; the height-to-width ratio of street facing façade should be 
compatible with adjacent buildings. 

• Orientation of new buildings should be toward the primary road and building setbacks should reflect 
traditional siting dimensions. 

• Materials should respect adjacent historic buildings. 
• Details and ornamentation should reflect those of surrounding buildings. 
• Window material, style, size, and trim should be consistent with historic windows and include 

dimensional mullions and exterior muntins, if applicable. 
• Doors should be of an appropriate design reflective of the architectural style of the building. 
• Roof design and details should reflect those of surrounding buildings 
• Colors should complement surrounding buildings. 

ANALYSIS: 

Adjacent to the subject property along West Belmar Street exist several one- and two-story houses that exhibit 
the Bungalow, Frame Vernacular, and Mediterranean Revival styles. Staff finds that the proposed new house is 
compatible in massing and scale to contributing Bungalow houses found throughout the Dixieland Historic 
District. The scale and proportion of the architectural elements of the house, including roof pitch and floor-to-
ceiling heights, is also compatible with adjacent structures. 

y:\cddo\hpb.drc\hpb-drc 2023\07.27.23\127 w. belmar street (hpb23-135)\127 w. belmar street staff report.docx Page 2 



    
 

  
          

        
      

        
   

 

     
       

     
   

     
 

 
 

 

    
 

 

   
       

  
    

   
 

      
  

Staff finds that the proposed materials are consistent with residences in the surrounding neighborhood and the 
Design Guidelines. The design of the house displays a neo-traditional style that is compatible with the 
architectural character of the District. Features such as the front-gabled porch supported by square columns 
with simple capitals and bases, lap siding with board-and batten and shingle siding in gables, windows with a 
one-over-one lite configuration and a three-quarter lite double front door are consistent with historical 
architectural styles found in the neighborhood, as well as the Design Guidelines. 

Finally, the proposed placement of the house on the lot is consistent with the Design Guidelines and Urban 
Neighborhood Standards in terms of orientation, building setbacks, and porch depth. The front yard building 
setback, at 15 feet, is the minimum required by the Code and is compatible with the houses on either side of the 
subject property; 205 W. Belmar Street to the west of the subject property is setback approximately 11 feet 
from the property line and 121 W. Belmar Street to the east of the subject property is setback approximately 12 
feet from the property line. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Final approval of the request with the following conditions, to be reviewed and approved by staff prior to 
permitting: 

1. Windows shall comply with the following requirements: 
a. Windows must be recessed to provide a shadow line and not installed flush to the exterior wall 

surface. 
b. Windows also must include historically appropriate trim, including header, sill, and apron. 

2. Submittal of an exterior paint palette. 

Report prepared by: Emily M. Foster, Senior Planner, Historic Preservation 
Liaison to the Historic Preservation Board 

y:\cddo\hpb.drc\hpb-drc 2023\07.27.23\127 w. belmar street (hpb23-135)\127 w. belmar street staff report.docx Page 3 



N 

14
5'

 

50' 15
' 

8' 8' 

57
' 

34' 

73
' 

W. Belmar St 



    
 

 

 
 

 

 

   
      

    
  

  

                     
                     

                     
                    

 

    

  

                       
                    

                    
              

    
   
 
    

                 
 

 
  

  

                      
              

     
   
     

                         
            

                

  
    

 
  

   
 

 
 

 
 

  
 
 

  
    

 
    

 
  

 

  
  
 

221 Palmetto St.
Auburndale, FL 33823

(863) 268-4048
TheSadlers@OurSadlerHome.com

OurSadlerHome.com

Customer Name: Scott and Tonya Strausser 
Job Address: 127 W Belmar St. Lakeland FL 33803 

Phone: 813-404-4866 

Email: sstrau@acehardware.com 

MINIMUM CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS ( Spec. Sheet ) 
The “Strausser” plan built at 127 Belmar St W Lakeland, FL 33803 (23-28-24-117500-037180) and includes Features below: 

Survey: Owner to provide boundary survey. 
Other surveys included: Boundary Survey Only 

Survey company and contact information: Deep South Surveying 

Concrete: Concrete floor slabs shall be approximately 3.5 inches thick, fiber mesh reinforced concrete with a minimum design strength of 3,000 PSI. A 
6-mil Vapor barrier shall be placed under concrete slab of the Living Area, Garage and Covered Porches. An "approved" termite treatment is 
included for the Dwelling and shall include a 1 year warranty from the providing Pest Control Company. This Contract includes the foundation 
stem wall. Floor height shall be sufficient to achieve proper drainage away from the structure and to accommodate other requirements and 
connections. 
Porches concrete: Pavers 

Drop shower floor: Yes 

Driveway and Sidewalk Allowance: 1,000 s/f 
Pavers Type/Color: TBD 

Masonry: All masonry exterior perimeter walls are 8" x 8" x 16" (nominal) hollow core concrete blocks set in place with type "S" or type "M" masonry 
cement. Exterior walls shall be covered with a 2 coat cementitious coating. 
Foundation Height: 4-5 Block (Approx 2 steps) 
Wall Height: 10' 
Stucco Bands: N/A 

Porch Columns: Straight Hardie Columns 

Framing: Roof trusses are Engineered and manufactured of pine. Roof dry-in shall be Grip Rite or equal. Interior wall studs are 2x4" spruce/pine set at 
approximately 16" on center. Wood against the concrete is Pressure Treated. Exterior soffit cover is White Vented Vinyl. Wall framing shall 
conform to applicable building codes. 1"x4" and 1"x6" backing is included around windows for backing of future draperies or blinds. Nailing, 
anchoring and other fastening shall be done per plans and applicable engineering and building codes. 
Roof Pitch: 6/12 Roof OSB: 7/16" 
Porch Ceilings: Tongue and Groove Wood Fascia: 6" Hardie 

Hardie Board: All exterior walls-Per plan Type: Mix 

If both where: Per plan 

Ceiling Height over Main Area: 10' Ceilings in Main Area 

Tray Ceilings: None 

Location of Niche in bathrooms: TBD 

Windows: All windows (see plans) are "Single Hung" with Double Pane, low-E glass. Tempered glass used where codes require. 
Window Color: White Vinyl 
Grids Front Only: No Grids 

Bathroom Window Clear- Transom Window 

Muntins 4" Hardie board 

Exterior Doors: All exterior doors shall be fiberglass or metal clad. All exterior doors get Keyed Locks and Keyed Deadbolt Locks from Builders selection. The 
Main Entry Door shall be a Fiberglass door with decorative glass from the builder's selection. 
Front Door Style: 3/4 glass single panel decorative glass Transom: None 

Front Door Size: Double Door- 8' Tall 
Porch Doors: French Doors with No Built-in Blinds 

mailto:sstrau@acehardware.com
http:OurSadlerHome.com
mailto:TheSadlers@OurSadlerHome.com


    
 

 

 
 

   
      

    
   

  
  

  
  

 

 
 

 

 

                   

                      
  

 

                        
      

 

 

 

221 Palmetto St.
Auburndale, FL 33823

(863) 268-4048
TheSadlers@OurSadlerHome.com

OurSadlerHome.com

Customer Name: Scott and Tonya Strausser 
Job Address: 127 W Belmar St. Lakeland FL 33803 

Raised Panel Garage Door: Non Insulated Windows: None Door Height: 8' 
Garage Side Exterior Door None 

Roofing: All roofing shall be Owens Corning "Duration" architectural shingles (or equal) with limited lifetime warranty over "GRIP-RITE" or equal dry-in 
material 
Eaves Drip is metal. Valley Metal is galvanized. Off-Ridge vents (where applicable: ridge vents) shall be installed on the roof per codes and 
where framing permits. 
Roof Type: Duration Shingles Roof Color: Driftwood 

Eave Color: TBD Soffit Color: White 

Exterior Options: Screen Enclosure Location: None 

Stone Location: None Gutters: None 

Shutter Type: NA Location: NA 

Excavation/ The yard shall be graded for proper drainage. Builder shall sod the yard to protect the grade and drainage. Does not include clearing trees or 
Landscaping: heavy brush. Does not include sprinkler system. 

Tree Clearing $5,000 Allowance 

Sod Type: Bahia Amount: Lot 
Sprinkler System: None 

Landscaping Basic Package 

http:OurSadlerHome.com
mailto:TheSadlers@OurSadlerHome.com




ELECTRICAL NOTES: 
ALL WORK SHALL BE DONE IN ACCORDANCE WITH LATEST NATIONAL 
ELECTRICAL CODE. 

WIRELESS SMOKE ALARM WITH 10 YEAR BATTERY. SMOKE DETECTORS 
NEED TO BE HARD-WIRED AND INTERCONNECTED. CODE REFERENCES 
BELOW: (FL 907.2.11.6 POWER SOURCE. IN NE•W CONSTRUCTION, 
REQUIRED SMOKE ALARMS SHALL RECEIVE THEIR PRIMARY POWER FROM 
THE BUILDING WIRING WHERE SUCH WIRING IS SERVED FROM A 
COMMERCIAL SOURCE AND SHALL BE EQUIPPED WITH A BATTERY 
BACKUP. SMOKE ALARMS WITH INTEGRAL STROBES THAT ARE NOT 
EQUIPPED WITH BATTERY BACKUP SHALL BE CONNECTED TO AN 
EMERGENCY ELECTRICAL SYSTEM IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 2702. 
SMOKE ALARMS SHALL EMIT A SIGNAL WHEN THE BATTERIES ARE 1OW. 
WIRING SHALL BE PERMANENT AND WITHOUT A DISCONNECTING SWITCH 
OTHER THAN AS REQUIRED FOR OVERCURRENT PROTECTION. EXCEPTION: 
SMOKE ALARMS ARE NOT REQUIRED TO BE EQUIPPED WITH BATTERY 
BACKUP WHERE THEY ARE CONNECTED TO AN EMERGENCY ETECTRICAL 
SYSTEM THAT COMPLIES WITH SECTION 2702. IFI INTERCONNECTION. 
WHERE MORE THAN ONE SMOKE ALARM IS REQUIRED TO BE INSTALLED 
WITHIN AN INDIVIDUAL DWELLING UNIT OR SLEEPING UNIT IN GROUP R OR 
F-1 OCCUPANCIES. THE SMOKE ALARMS SHALL BE INTERCONNECTED IN 
SUCH A MANNER THAT THE ACTIVATION OF ONE ALARM WILT ACTIVATE 
ALL OF THE ALARMS IN THE INDIVIDUAL UNIT PHYSICAL INTERCONNECTION 
OF SMOKE ALARMS SHALL NOT BE REQUIRED WHERE LISTED WIRELESS 
ALARMS ARE INSTALLED AND ALL ALARMS SOUND UPON ACTIVATION OF 
ONE ALARM. THE ALARM SHALL BE CTEARLY AUDIBLE IN ALL BEDROOMS 
OVER BACKGROUND NOISE LEVELS WITH ALL INTERVENING DOORS 
CLOSED. 

ELECTRIC SERVICE TO BE GROUNDED TO GROUNDING ELECTRODE 
SYSTEM WITH CONCRETE ENCASED ELECTRODE PER THE LATEST NEC 
ARTICLE 250-50(c). 

ALL BEDROOM RECEPTACLES TO BE PROTECTED WITH ARC-FAULT 
BREAKERS PER THE LATEST NEC ARTICLE 212-12. 








	HPB Agenda
	DRC Agenda
	HPB23-133, 506 W Belmar St
	HPB23-134, 927 S Florida Av
	HPB23-135, 127 W Belmar St



